ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2014
9:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bert Stednman
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO 145

"An Act relating to the Teachers' Retirement System the
Judicial Retirenment System and the Public Enployees' Retirenent
System for qualified mlitary service; relating to the
definition of 'veteran' for purposes of housing, eligibility for
veterans' |oans, and preferences in state enploynent hiring; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED SB 145 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 127

"An Act authorizing the conm ssioner of admnistration to enter
into agreenents with agents to perform for conpensation certain
transactions related to vehicles; relating to the duties of
t hose agents; and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED SB 127 OUJT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 23
Proclaimng WMarch 27, 2014, as Good Friday Earthquake
Renmenbr ance Day.

- MOVED HIR 23 OQUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 19(M.V)

Urging the Secretary of the United States Air Force, the Chief
of Staff of the United States Air Force, and the Conmmander of
the Pacific Air Forces to base F-35 aircraft assigned to the
Pacific Air Forces at Eielson Air Force Base.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 20, 2014



- MOVED CSHJR 19(M.V) QUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 145
SHORT TI TLE: VETS RETI REMENT/ LOANS/ HOUSI NG EMPLOYMENT
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/ 29/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 29/ 14 (S) STA

02/ 13/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 13/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 13/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 20/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Bl LL: SB 127

SHORT TI TLE: VEHI CLE TRANSACTI ON AGENTS
SPONSOR(s): G ESSEL

01/ 22/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 14 (S) STA

02/ 13/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 13/ 14 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 13/ 14 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 20/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: HIR 23

SHORT TI TLE: GOOD FRI DAY EARTHQUAKE REMEMBRANCE DAY
SPONSOR(s): M LLETT

01/ 21/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 14 (H STA

01/ 28/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 28/ 14 (H Moved CSHIR 23(STA) Qut of Conmittee

01/ 28/ 14 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 04/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 04/ 14 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 04/ 14 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 05/ 14 (H STA RPT 7DP

02/ 05/ 14 (H DP: M LLETT, GATTIS, KELLER, | SAACSQON,
KREI SS- TOWKI NS, HUGHES, LYNN

02/ 07/ 14 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 07/ 14 (H) VERSI ON:  HIR 23

02/ 10/ 14 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

02/ 10/ 14 (S) STA

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 20, 2014



02/ 20/ 14 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HIR 19
SHORT TITLE. BASE F-35 Al RCRAFT AT El ELSON AFB
SPONSOR(s): | SAACSON

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 14 (H MLV

02/ 04/ 14 (H) MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPl TOL 120

02/ 04/ 14 (H) Moved CSHIR 19(M.V) Qut of Committee

02/ 04/ 14 (H) M NUTE( M.V)

02/ 07/ 14 (H) M.V RPT CS(M.V) 7DP

02/ 07/ 14 (H) DP:  GRUENBERG, HIGA NS,  REI NBOLD,
SADDLER, HUGHES, FOSTER, LEDOUX

02/ 10/ 14 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

02/ 10/ 14 (H) VERSI ON:  CSHIR 19( M.V)

02/ 12/ 14 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 12/ 14 (S) STA

02/ 20/ 14 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M KE BARNHI LL, Deputy Conmi ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of SB 145.

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Conm ssi oner

Al aska Departnent of MIlitary and Veterans Affairs

Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson

Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed departnental questions regarding
SB 145.

MARK SAN SOUCI, Northwest Regional State Liaison

Department of Defense State Liaison Ofice

O fice of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense

Tacoma, Washi ngton

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported Senator W el echowski's proposed
amendnment to SB 145.

CARY BOLLI NG Sal es Marketing Manager

Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Announced being available for questions
regardi ng SB 145.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 20, 2014



BOB PAWLOWBKI, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 145.

MONI CA SOUTHWORTH, St af f

Senat or W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided a proposed amendnent overview for
SB 145.

JON SHERWOOD, Deputy Director

Division of Senior & Disabilities Services

Al aska Departnent of Health and Soci al Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI Tl ON STATEMENT: Explained how the Division of Senior &
Disabilities Services oversees the Medicaid Honme and Comrunity
Care Wi ver program

FORREST WOLFE, Staff

Senat or G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview for SB 127.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)

Al aska Departnent of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Set forth that DW supports SB 127.

DUANE BANNCCK, representing hinself

Kenai, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT:  Announced being available for questions
regardi ng SB 127.

JEFF TURNER, St aff

Representative Ml lett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overvi ew of HIR 23.

CHARLES VOLANTI, representing hinself
A ynpi a, Washi ngt on
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HIR 23.

REPRESENTATI VE DOUG | SAACSON

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 20, 2014



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: HIR 19 sponsor.

LUKE HOPKI NS, Mayor

Fai rbanks North Star Borough

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports HIR 19.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9:04:19 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:04 a.m Present at the call to

order were Senators G essel, Welechowski, Coghill, and Chair
Dyson.
9:04: 35 AM

CHAIR DYSON announced that there are tw bills and two
resolutions before the commttee. He stated that his intention

with the commttee's approval, is to nove all four pieces of
| egi slation at today's neeting.

SB 145- VETS RETI REMENT/ LOANS/ HOUSI NG EMPLOYMENT

CHAI R DYSON announced the consi derati on of SB 145.

9: 05: 06 AM

M KE BARNHI LL, Deputy  Comm ssi oner, Al aska Departnent  of
Adm ni stration, Juneau, Al aska, introduced the CGovernor's
veteran update bill. He said the bill does a handful of things

to update Alaska's laws wth respect to treatnent of veterans.
He specified that the hiring preference in the state's personnel
code wupdates the definition of veteran to include recent
conflicts that followed the Vietnam War; that wupdate also
applies to Departnent of Comrerce veterans' |oans as well as
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation access to housing projects.
He added that the bill also updates Al aska pension law to conply
with the Heroes Earnings Assistance Relief Tax (HEART) Act of
2008. He explained that the HEART Act was enacted by Congress to
address active enployees of enployers that participate in the
Public Enployee Retirenent System Teachers Retirenent System
or Judicial Retirenment System He specified that an enpl oyee who
is called into service and killed while performng qualified
mlitary service that their last day of enploynent wll be

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 20, 2014



deened the date of death for purposes of pension benefits that
the survivors would receive such as accelerated vesting or
insularly life insurance benefits. He added that to conply wth
the HEART Act, the wage differential 1is defined as the
di fference between the wage that the enployee receives in public
enpl oynent versus the wage that they receive fromthe mlitary;
that is the differential wage that wll be construed under
federal law as W2 wages and the enployer will include that as
wages paid to the enployee for tax purposes.

9:07: 55 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed page 4, lines 14-18 regarding
qualifications for |oans. He asked what would be the |ast date
of Operation Ilraqi Freedom and tine periods that will be listed

in 5 United States Code (USC) 2108(1).

MR. BARNHILL replied that the last date will be defined by the
federal governnent. He stated that he did not know when the date
will be. He said the federal statute is a statute that defines
veteran in much the same way that Alaska's statute does. He
expl ai ned that federal |aws update conflicts on a nore regul ar
basis and Al aska has not updated its veteran definition statutes
since the Vietnam War. He specified that the federal statute
include the initial Iraqgi Conflict from 1990-1992 and Operation
Iraqi Freedomw || be added.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if people deployed in Afghani stan or
other parts of the world would be cover ed.

MR. BARNHI LL specified that the bill covers all service rendered
during specific tinme periods wherever in the world that service
occurs, exanples would include San Francisco, I raq, and
Af ghani st an.

9:09:47 AM

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy  Commi ssi oner, Al aska Departnent  of
Mlitary and Veterans Affairs (DWA), Joint Base Elnendorf-
Ri chardson, Richardson, Alaska, said he had addressed the
service rendered issue with M. Barnhill and noted working with
the U S. Departnent of Veterans Affairs that Operation Enduring
Freedom (OEF), which includes Afghanistan, is included in the
definition, but not specified until the conflict is conpletely
finished. He said OEF is expected to drawdown by sonetine in
2015.

SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI asked if coverage for service rendered is
time or |ocation based.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 20, 2014



MR. PIERRE replied that coverage is dependent on a person's job
title and what the person is doing. For exanple, an individua
flying Unmanned Arial Vehicle (UAV) mssions in Nevada would be
included as a conbat veteran. He added that every veteran's DD
214 docunent wll have a conbat identifier.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that he has a DD 214 docunent when he
separated fromthe mlitary.

CHAIR DYSON asked if the conmttee should consider putting
wording in the bill that whenever the federal governnent changes
their classifications on a new conflict that Al aska s statutes
woul d follow that.

9:12: 01 AM
MR. BARNHI LL answered that was exactly what the bill proposes to
do by incorporating reference to 5 USC 2108.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there were other situations where
the state would not want to be bound by the federal governnent's
definition.

MR PIERRE replied that followng the federal code for the
definition of conbat veteran should be safe. He advised that the
state follow the federal code.

SENATOR COGHILL remarked that he usually is not a fan of tying
statutes to federal code, but agrees with the proposal because
Al askan veterans will benefit due to the state's slower statute
changes.

9:13:47 AM
CHAI R DYSON opened the hearing to public testinony.

9:14: 00 AM

MARK SAN SQUCI, Northwest Regional State Liaison, Defense State
Liaison Ofice, Ofice of the Deputy Assistant Secretary of
Def ense, Tacoma, Washington, stated that he wi Il address Senator
W el echowski's proposed anendnent.

9:14: 25 AM

CARY BOLLI NG Sales Marketing Manager, Al aska Housing Finance
Cor poration, Anchorage, Alaska, said he was available for
guesti oni ng.

9:14: 40 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 20, 2014



BOB PAW.OWBKI, representing hinself, Anchorage, Al aska, pointed
out that he is a retired National OCceanic and Atnospheric
Adm nistration (NOAA) comm ssioned officer and a federally
recogni zed veteran with service connected to injuries. He read
the foll ow ng statenent:

| appreciate your attention to the inportance that our
veterans bring to our nation and our state and

revealing this bill as an wupdate to the Al askan
veteran's laws, which appears, listening to Deputy
Comm ssioner Barnhill, has not been updated since the
Vi etnam era. I ask you to consider bri ngi ng

consi stency between the present U S. code definitions
and the Al aska statutes associated with Veterans Arned
Forces, Mlitary Service, and Uniforned Services.
Specifically I amreferring to: Title 10 USC, which is
the Arnmed Forces' title; Title 37 USC, which is pay
and allowances; and Title 38 USC, which is Veteran's
Benefits as they apply to the definitions of active
duty, mlitary service, and wuniforned services. |
respect the difference of conbat veterans, conbat
service, and arned service versus active duty mlitary
uni formed services as it pertains to the lower parts

of the statute in front of you. | fully support the
eras and the conflict. | am just asking that the
veteran's |anguage be brought consistent with federa
code.

MR. PAW.OWSKI noted his work background work as a state enpl oyee
and his inability to claimto be a service disabled veteran. He
called attention to the inconsistencies in statutes.

CHAIR DYSON asked M. Pierre to comment on M. Pawl owski's
testi nony.

9:18:51 AM

MR. PIERRE noted that M. Paw owski has some valid points and
his departnment can take a hard look at all of the |ocations of
"veteran" separate from what is a conbat veteran and then what
is a veteran in general. He said he did not know if SB 145 is
the vehicle, but added that he can address M. Paw owski's
poi nts and provide a recomendati on.

CHAI R DYSON asked where SB 145 goes next. He inquired if SB 145
had a Senate Finance Committee referral.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 20, 2014



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI revealed that SB 145 goes to the Senate
Fl oor .

CHAI R DYSON addressed M. Pierre and noted that he thinks Public
Health Service and NOAA are not considered to be mlitary
vet erans.

MR. PIERRE replied that Chair Dyson's assunption is not entirely
correct. He specified that individuals that separate from NOAA
receive a DD 214 docunent that provides for veteran status
determnation. He said M. Pawl owski is an exanple of soneone
who is a service connected veteran who the U.S. Departnent of
Veterans Affairs (VA) says is a veteran, so the question where
we have sone discrepancies in the state's prograns that m ght
not require to be fixed through statute and could be fixed
t hrough regul ation that specifies in personnel hiring to include
vet erans recogni zed by the VA

9: 20: 49 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

9:22:15 AM
CHAI R DYSON called the conmmttee back to order.

9:22: 57 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI offered Anendment 1 to the commtt ee.

CHAI R DYSON obj ected for the purposes of discussion.

9:23:23 AM

MONI CA SOQUTHWORTH, Staff, Senator Wel echowski, Alaska State
Legi slature, Juneau, Alaska, said the anendnent before the
conmmttee deals with Medicaid waivers and the wait list for
mlitary famlies. She explained that the issue arose out of a
survey that was done by a national organi zation called
Specialized Training of Mlitary Parents (STOW,) which works
with mlitary famlies that have special needs children. She
said often tines the Tricare Echo Program which is a
suppl enmental insurance program to Tricare Standard and Tricare
Prime, does not always fulfill all of the famlies' needs and
requires famlies to apply for a Medicaid waiver. She related
that many comments from the STOW survey revol ved around respite
care not being enough and the only option for a famly was
Medicaid. She set forth situations where famlies apply for
Medi caid waivers and are then stationed outside of Alaska. She
revealed that Alaska's average Medicaid waiver wait list 1is
approximately four years for home and community based care. She

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 20, 2014



said famlies are renoved from the waiver wait |ist when they
| eave the state. She set forth that the anendnent proposes that
famlies remain on the state's waiting list and maintain their
priority as long as they intend to return to Alaska within 18
nmonths of separation. She specified that services wll not
follow famlies out of the state. She said the anmendnent wll
benefit famlies at Eielson Ar Force Base and Joint Base
El mendorf-Ri chardson (JBER), but only if famlies return to the
state. She revealed that M. San Souci is available for comment
and noted that allowi ng service nmenbers to retain their Medicaid
wai ver priority is listed as a top ten issue for the DOD
Legi sl ative Liaison Ofice.

9:25:34 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI  nentioned that Amendnent 1 has a zero
fiscal note, does not cost anything to do, and specifically
preserves a service nenber's place on a waiting list. He
specified that service nenbers will not lose their wait |ist
position as long as they intend to conme back and permanently
reside in Al aska.

MR. SAN SOUCI detailed that preserving the place on a waiting
list consistently becomes a key issue for special needs famlies
that nove out of state and are required to start over from
square one. He specified that in sonme states the wait is two to
eight years with service famlies that nove to another state
having to start over. He explained that the thought for the
easiest solution is to just have the |legal residence of a state
apply during active duty and stay in the queue for future
mlitary coverage. He specified that the request is not asking
for a new entitlenent or to bunp anyone else off a list. He
noted that famly dependency wll be reevaluated due to
potential medical change. He noted service wait |ist legislation
has passed in other states with zero fiscal notes.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Barnhill for the Adm nistration's position
on Anendnent 1.

MR. BARNHI LL replied that the question pertains to the
Department of Health and Social Services and DOD priorities.

9:28:30 AM

JON SHERWOOD, Deputy Director, Division of Senior & Disabilities
Services (DSDS), Alaska Departnent of Health and Social
Services, Juneau, Al aska, said DSDS oversees the Medicaid Hone
and Conmmunity Care Waivers (MHCCW. He explained that Medicaid
wai vers are alternatives to institutional care that nust neet

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 20, 2014



institutional care standards for qualification. He said Al aska
currently operates four Medicaid waivers. He explained that
unli ke the rest of the Medicaid program which could be called a
pure entitlenent, states are allowed to |limt the nunber of
people who are served on their waivers. Three of the state's
four waivers do not operate with waiting lists and provide for
imrediate eligibility.

MR, SHERWOOD said the MICCW wait |ist is approximately 600
peopl e at any given tine. He explained that people on the NMACCW
wait list are ranked according to need-score with approxi mately
20 people per nmonth noved off of the wait list. He noted that

people who return to the state with a high need-score would be
ranked high on the registry list. He asserted that the amendnent

will not have a substantial inpact on the wait |ist.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there is a downside to Arendnent 1.

MR. SHERWOCOD replied that Amendnment 1 would mnimally inpact
VHCCW

9:31: 27 AM

CHAIR DYSON noted that the Pernmanent Dividend Fund addresses
state residency. He asked if residency verification would be an
i ssue for DSDS.

MR. SHERWOCD answered that he did not think so. He said DSDS
woul d probably give people the benefit of the doubt if they
provi ded a reasonable case. He noted that candidates still have
to go through a thorough application process to be determ ned
for Medicaid qualification.

SENATOR COGHILL surmsed that the speed of the qualification
process is slow. He noted his support for those who want to cone
back to Al aska. He asked if Amendnent 1 would "tip the scal es”
in favor of a mlitary famly.

MR. SHERWOOD expl ai ned that DSDS draws peopl e based on a nuneric
score and people wth simlar scores would be drawn at the sane
time.

SENATOR COGHILL set forth that MHCCW is generally services that
are the last best hope for famlies to help them survive. He
asserted that the state provides sone pretty good services even
though the MHCCW wait list is long. He noted that nmany
communities are stepping up. He asked if Anmendnment 1 would act
as a draw or a convenience for mlitary famlies.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 20, 2014



9:35: 06 AM

MR. SHERWOOD answered that he did not know. He noted that
mul tiple support services are available to Al aska residents
beyond MHCCW He noted his concern that people do not know how
the MHCCW wait |ist works. He specified that the wait list is
not tine based and people do not start back at the beginning. He
noted that a quarter of the people on the wait |ist have the
| onest possible score in terns of ranking and do not identify
for imediate needs. He added that |ower ranked famlies have
access to other services.

9:37: 01 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL expressed his concern for individuals who are
waiting for the nost intensive services. He said he did not want
individuals to think that people are going to be noved in and
individuals with intensive needs are going to be bunped off. He
specified that the wait list is based on need. He said with al
due respect to the mlitary, the intent should be to assimlate
mlitary famlies and help them everywhere the state can;
however, there are individuals with needs that nust be treated
as fairly and equitably as possible.

CHAI R DYSON addressed M. Pierre and asked to clarify that DWA
does not have a position on Arendnent 1.

MR PIERRE replied that DWA has done a trenmendous job to
identify all of the top ten priorities as Senator W el echowski
has pointed out. He asserted that SB 145 deals with specific
cl eanup | anguage and Amendnent 1 is not in line with what the
bill is trying to acconplish. He stated that Anmendnent 1 has
good nerit and stands on its own, but does align with SB 145.

CHAIR DYSON asked Senator Welechowski if Anmendnent 1 fits
within the title of SB 145.

9:39:18 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI replied that he thinks Arendnent 1 does fit
within the bill's title and noted its intent was proposed as
sort of a mlitary omibus bill. He noted being careful not to

include the intent from Amendnent 1 in a nunber of his mlitary
bills that have fiscal notes. He stated his belief that the
intent in SB 145 was to nake Alaska nore attractive for active
duty and veterans to honor their services wth Anmendnent 1
addressing the sane intent. He reiterated that Anmendnent 1 holds
a spot as long as the service famly returns within 17 nonths
and avoi ds an added three years of waiting.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 20, 2014



CHAIR DYSON asked if Senator Welechowski had Legislative
Legal 's anal ysis on whether Amendnent 1 fits under SB 145.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI answered yes and expl ai ned as fol |l ows:

It's not a bill that canme from the House, there's not
a title change and it fits wthin the title. You have
to insert a provision and that's what we do on page 1
of the amendnment to slightly change the title, it's
within the subject, so there is no constitutiona
i ssue.

SENATOR G ESSEL pointed out that the Key Coalition of Al aska was
recently at the Capitol. She said she had nmeetings with multiple
parents talking about the wait |ist and how heart breaking it
was for them to persevere through the wait list until their
opportunity came up. She remarked that while the anendnment nmay
have nerit for the mlitary folks and may not substantially
change who noves up on the wait list, she shared a concern that
her desperately waiting constituents may perceive being pushed
asi de by soneone else. She set forth that she will be a no vote
on Anendnent 1.

9:42: 25 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI replied that he certainly respects Senator
G essel's opinion. He pointed out that the people affected by
hi s amendnent are Al aska residents who are being required by the
government to go out of state. He asserted that his intent is to
specify the inportant distinction. He pointed out |egislation
from last year that allows the Permanent Dividend Fund to grant
exenptions when an Al aska resident is forced to be out of state
by the governnment. He asserted that the intent of Amendnent 1 is
simlar to what is done wth the Permanent Dividend Fund.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked to address DSDS and noted that it is his
understanding that it is based on need and not on tine. He
stated that at this point it is not a matter of holding a place.
He asked if a famly that returns to the state would have to go
through the reapplication process and would Anmendnent 1 help
them receive their waiver nore quickly.

MR. SHERWOOD replied that Amendnment 1 wll do nothing about
accelerating Medicaid eligibility and will not materially affect
an individual's score. He reiterated that individuals wll have
to reapply when they return to the state. He noted that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 20, 2014



reapplication registry process may be sped up. He reveal ed that
the registry process takes approxi mately 30 days.

9:45: 27 AM

SENATOR COGHILL verified that individuals would have to apply
for the Medicaid waiver because that is a state run programwth
federal partnership.

MR, SHERWOOD answered correct. He explained that waiver services
are not portable and do not follow a famly if they nove out of
state.

SENATOR COGHI LL comrented that Amendnent 1 may assist a mlitary
famly to quickly reestablish waiver eligibility. He said he did
not see any great material benefit from Anendnent 1 and noted
that eligibility is qualification-based rather than tinme-based.
He asserted that verbiage in the anendnent that a place is held
does not help. He inquired if Anmendnent 1's tinelines adds
complexity for individuals who do not fall within its
par anmeters.

MR. SHERWOOD answered that DSDS woul d have to add sone degree of
verification if tinelines are involved. He added that Anendnent
1 would not give an individual a particular qualification
advant age. He said people who did not neet a tineline
restriction would proceed through the registry process and
essentially conpete with others on the wait |ist based on score.
He stated that Amendnent 1 would not have a detrinental i npact
on people who did not neet its tinelines.

9:48: 03 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that he will mintain his objection and
asked for a roll call vote. Senators Welechowski and Dyson
voted yea; Senators Gessel and Coghill voted nay; therefore
Amendnent 1 fails.

9:48: 31 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced the commttee would stand at ease.

9:48: 35 AM
CHAI R DYSON call ed the conmmttee back to order.

CHAI R DYSON announced that Amendnment 1 fails and asked for a
nmoti on.

9:48: 51 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 20, 2014



SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SB 145, | abel ed 28- GS2585\ A from
commttee with individual recommendations and attached zero
fiscal note.

9:49: 05 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that w thout objection, SB 145 passes out
of the Senate State Affairs Standing Commttee.

9:49: 12 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.
SB 127- VEH CLE TRANSACTI ON AGENTS

9:50: 20 AM

CHAIR DYSON called the committee back to order. He announced
that SB 127 will be the next order of business. He noted that SB
127 was previously heard.

9:50: 24 AM

FORREST WOLFE, Staff, Senator G essel, Alaska State Legislature,
Juneau, Al aska, said at the previous hearing it my have cone
across that the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW) was being
unfairly criticized. He set forth that the intent was to
denonstrate the volunme of work that is done by the private
sector though its partnership with DW. He said DW has nade
great strides in the past two years to increase their efficiency
through former Director Duane Bannock's advanced business
partnership program and current Director Any Erickson. He noted
DW's use of webcans for viewng waiting lines as well as a nore
efficient ticket system

He called attention to a criticism that businesses are already
receiving incone from the state and why should the businesses
receive even nore incone fromthe state in addition to charging
fees above and beyond what the state is charging. He asserted
that the issue is not how much businesses are charging for
transactions and added that fees charged by busi nesses shoul d be
dictated by the free market. He said the issue is that there is
a large volune of work being done by the private sector for the
state for which they are receiving no conpensation from the
state at this tine. He set forth that SB 127 is about fairness
and noted simlar prograns in other departnents where the state
directly conpensates businesses. He said SB 127 addresses
fairness due to the work volune done by businesses that partner
with DW.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 20, 2014



CHAI R DYSON stated that what M. Wlfe said did not nake sense
to him He asked if M. Wl fe neant the business surcharge being
pl aced on the delivery of service.

MR WOLFE replied that businesses are not receiving any
conpensation fromthe state.

CHAIR DYSON asked to verify that Dbusinesses receive the
surcharge that they place on delivery of service.

MR WOLFE answered correct.

9:53: 22 AM

AMY ERICKSON, Director, Division of Mdtor Vehicles (DW), Al aska
Department of Adm nistration, Anchorage, Alaska, set forth that
DW supports making official its practices of partnering wth
private businesses to conduct title and registration services

She continued to read the foll ow ng statenent:

DW provides the business partners wth all of the
supplies needed to conduct title and registration

services including: license plates, nonth and year
tabs, forms, driver nanuals, and handi capped placards
all free of <charge. The DWW also provides free

training to process transactions and free access to
all of the agents to access the DW data base. The
busi ness partners charge a fee to custoners that are
not regulated or even disclosed to DW and sone even
benefit from the supplies that are free at a DW
of fice, including handicap placards and driving
manual s. Wiile the business partners make  up
approximately 26 percent of DW revenues, these
busi nesses do not function autononously. DW staff
touches each and every transaction conducted by a
business partner and we have a staff of seven to
oversee and support their everyday operations. Even
with DW support, they too make errors that DW nust
resolve and they are still paid by the custoner
regardless of the mstake or the accuracy of their
transactions. W serve as a de facto hel pdesk for the
busi ness partners and spend hours review ng docunents
and correcting docunments. Sonme of the errors can be
serious and tine consuming to correct. Sone of the
busi ness partners have even registered a golf cart and
a dune buggy for highway use which has resulted in
litigation for the DW.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 20, 2014



M5. ERICKSON said her previous statenent is not neant to say
that DW does not also make m stakes. She summarized that DW
supports the business partners in mny ways. She said the
busi ness partnerships are conprised of storefronts that provide
t he servi ces, car deal er shi ps, financi al i nstitutions,
comm ssioned agents that serve the smaller comunities, driving
school bus contractors, tour conpanies that admnister road
tests, and nedical facilities that issue disabled parking
permts. She said DW' s original fiscal note only addressed for-
profit determ ned store fronts, but noted a letter fromthe auto

dealers that the bill nay also apply to car dealerships and
financial institutions that conducts the same transactions. She
stated that the clarification would affect the bill's fiscal
note and DW wll be submtting a new fiscal note at the next
committee neeting if the bill's inplication is clarified.

9:56: 23 AM

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Erickson to repeat her |ast sentence.

M5. ERICKSON responded that DW would need to submt a new
fiscal note if SB 127 really does include the car deal erships
that do their own title and registration transactions in
addition to financial institutions. She explained that DW did
not include car deal erships and financial institutions in their
original fiscal note. She said the business partners would al so
benefit from the added 15 percent from proceeds if they are
included in SB 127. She noted that auto deal ers support SB 127.

CHAI R DYSON asked at what point DW realizes |abor savings when
busi ness partners performpart of the division s work.

M5. ERI CKSON answered that she did not know and would attenpt to
find out.

CHAI R DYSON suggested basing the cost savings on how many
transactions a DW enpl oyee does in a day and conpare the anount
of transactions done by the business partners to calculate the
anount of hours and benefits saved by DW.

M5. ERICKSON replied that she woul d get back to Chair Dyson with
the information

CHAI R DYSON noted that a fiscal note ought to reflect both the
revenue DW does not |eave and perhaps at sone point expenses
that DW does not have to incur. He asked if DW supports SB
127.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 20, 2014



M5. ERICKSON answered that DW absolutely supports the idea of
putting into statute the business contracts. She said the fees
the state pays is really a policy call that she cannot comrent
on.

9:59:12 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noted that the Departnent of Fish and Gane
contracts w th busi nesses. She addr essed DW' s busi ness

partnership as a larger reach with auto deal ershi ps. She pointed
out that auto deal erships are considering dropping extended DW
services due to their added personnel costs. She noted that
personnel costs are a private business's highest operational

liability. She pointed out AS 28.10.431(e) allows DW to collect
| ocal governnment taxes for license plate renewal. She pointed
out that the statute allows DW to retain 8 percent of the |oca

tax fees as adm nistrative costs for tax collection. She said
while DW may be saying it is inappropriate for private
busi nesses to be retaining sone of the notor vehicle fees, DW
is retaining noney for collecting tax fees for | ocal

gover nnent s.

CHAI R DYSON noted that the bill's sponsor has expressed approval
for the committee's recommendation for a Senate Finance
Commttee referral. He remarked that the Finance Conmittee may
want the very kind of information that the conmttee asked
about .

10: 01: 53 AM
DUANE BANNOCK, representing hinself, Kenai, Al aska, announced
bei ng avail able to answer questions.

CHAI R DYSON asked if anyone would like to speak to the bill. He
stated that seeing and hearing none, [public testinony 1is
cl osed. ]

10: 02: 12 AM

CHAI R DYSON noved SB 127 [| abel ed 28-LS1263\A] from Senate State
Affairs wth individual recommendations wth attached fiscal
note/s. Seeing no objection, [SB 127] noved out of commttee.

10: 03: 06 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

HIR 23- GOOD FRI DAY EARTHQUAKE REMEMBRANCE DAY

10: 04: 05 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 20, 2014



CHAI R DYSON announced that HIR 23 is before the commttee.

10: 04: 12 AM

JEFF  TURNER, Staff, Representative Mllett, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Al aska, said HIR 23 wll mark the 50th
anniversary of the Good Friday Earthquake on March 27, 2014. He
continued to read the follow ng statenent:

The 9.2 magni tude quake tore apart about 50,000 square
mles of South Central Alaska and l|eveled entire
communities and triggered nmassive tsunam s that
brought even nore devastation to the coastal areas.
The purpose of HIR 23 is not to highlight the
earthquake or the destruction, but to honor the
t housands of Alaskans who put the needs of other
before their own needs followng the quake. First
responders, nedical personnel, the Al aska Arny and the
Air National Guard, the U S. Arny Corps of Engineers,
and governnment enployees were joined by everyday
Al askans to conduct search and rescue operations,
provi de nedi cal care, f ood, shel ter, and the
restoration of vital services and infrastructure. It
was their selfless determination that saved unknown
nunbers of lives and rebuilt Southcentral comunities
before the return of wnter that year. HIR 23
recogni zes how a great disaster brought out the best
of all Al askans by proclaimng March 27, 2014 as Good
Friday Earthquake Renenbrance Day. Representati ve
MIllett respectively asks for the committee's support
for the legislation so it can be included in the
events marking the 50th anniversary of the quake that
will be taking place in Anchorage and other
comuni ties around Sout hcentral Al aska.

MR. TURNER pointed out letters of support from Valdez WMayor
David Cobb and Anchorage Mayor Dan Sullivan. He inforned the
committee that on the phone is M. Chuck Volanti, an Alaska Ar
Guard veteran who brought the idea for HIR 23 to Representative
MIllett. He noted the M. Volanti served at Kulis Airbase during
the earthquake and is one of the individuals honored under HIR
23.

10: 06: 20 AM
CHARLES VOLANTI, representing hinself, dynpia, Washington, read
the foll owm ng statenent:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 20, 2014



| wish to thank Representative Mllett for her
comnpassi on, humani t ari an efforts, and for
orchestrating overwhelmng House support for this
resolution that honors Alaska state history. Thank
you, M. Chairman and Senate committee nenbers, for
the opportunity to speak on this tragic and historical
event that not only affected all Alaskans, but also
carried death and destruction far beyond its Al aska
boar ders.

Today nmuch is known about the Al aska Earthquake of
1964, it is neasured 9.2 nmagnitude strength and wi de
spread areas of death and destruction are wdely
publ i shed and appear across a variety of witten and
el ectronic nedia. There are thousands of pictures and
equally countless testinonials, mne is but one and ny
famly one of |ucky ones. The best way to describe ny
experience is to say that nost of us know what a bul

riding contest |looks like, rider sitting on top of a
massive junping, jolting, and twisting beast that is
doing everything possible to dislodge the rider, a
rider who is hoping to last the required 8 seconds, if
you can imagine that, then you will know what | and
countl ess thousands of others went through not for 8
seconds, but for alnbst 4 mnutes where seconds seened

liked hours. On WMarch 27, 1964 | was a flight
di spatcher at Kulis Air National Guard Base in
Anchorage, a position that | held as part of a small

contingent of civilian enployees, |less than 100, and
an Air National Guardsnen. That evening |I arrived hone
fromKulis just about 5:00 p.m and waited for ny wife
and son to return hone. Suddenly in the fading |ight
of day at 5:36 p.m all hell broke |oose and Al aska

was forever changed. | bolted for the door and tried
desperately to get out to reach the screans of ny
nei ghbor and daughter, but try as | may there was no
way of standing, so | sat pinned to the floor wth

both hands tightly wapped around the entry way door
knob, waiting and praying for the violent shaking to
end. Finally after what seenmed an eternity it stopped.
| junped up, ran next door, entered, checked on the
wonen, once | saw they were alright | ran back outside
just in tinme to see ny wife pulling into the driveway
with our six nonth old son strapped into his car seat.
She said when the quake started it felt like a flat
tire and pronptly pulled to the curb, but soon
realized this was a massive quake and not a flat tire

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 20, 2014



and she watched in horror as plate glass w ndows of
store crashed to the sidewal k and people who sprang
out of the openings being knocked to the ground. W
exchanged hugs, some quick conments, and went back
into our home. There was no structural damage, but
plenty of disarray, it took a few mnutes to see that
she and our son had the basic necessities and |
i medi ately turned to her and said | have to |eave, |
have to get to Kulis. She was visibly shaken, but a
strong wonan she replied "go,"” fully realizing there
woul d be those who were in desperate need. | ran to
the car and sped towards Kulis, junping several
divisions in the road and all the tinme wondering if
there mght be one | wouldn't be able to overcone, but
god was gracious and within 15 mnutes | nmade it
wi thout mshap. By now, Alaska Ar Guard and Arny
National CGuard troops were converging on Kulis in
mass. W imedi ately set about doing what we had | ong
been trained to do and that was to expend all efforts
to alleviate and mtigate the suffering being
experienced by countless citizens of Al aska, wherever
that took us. Anywhere from freeing two souls trapped
in the rubble of a collapsed Anchorage Internationa

Ai rport t ower, to sendi ng troops t hr oughout
nei ghboring communities to recover the dead, provide
for the injured, free those still trapped, maintain
civil order, and finally to forge efforts to put

humanitarian relief flights in to the air.

That day, in the bond of human conpassion we stood
shoul der to shoul der with thousands of first
responders, it was unlike anything ever seen before

they canme from all walks of life beginning with your
next door neighbor to those described wthin this
resolution. Many self-sacrificing people went into
unstabl e, unknown circunstances as they sought to
render aid and assistance to those in desperate need.
Tragically, sone would pay the ultinate price. The
guakes and tsunam s, though ravaging, destructive, and
deadly as they were, is not the main focus of this
event. The cornerstone to this day remains the people
of Alaska, their strong will of resilience, resolve

tenacity, and their unabated selfless sacrifice becane
their legacy, that is what we should never forget,
never take for granted, and always renenber. However
massive and tragic as this event was, there renmains a
common thread that was even stronger and nore

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- February 20, 2014



pervasive than all of that and it was the enduring
spirit that was found enbedded within the mlk of
human ki ndness. On March 27, 2014 at 5:36 p.m, in an
act of honor and tribute, church bells across Al aska
will toll in nenorial for all we have spoken of here
today. Ladies and gentlenen of the Senate, your
support of this resolution and its ultinmate passage
will ensure its rightful place in Al aska state
history. | close by saying that | dedicate all efforts
| have thus far expended to those who have perished,
those who suffered great loss, to the thousands who
selflessly served, and to those who paid the ultinate
sacrifice and are nentioned within this resolution and
the famlies that the |left behind.

10: 11: 16 AM
CHAI R DYSON conmended M. Vol anti for his service. He noted that
an international earth quake synposium will occur in Anchorage

with 1,000 experts attending the spring of 2014. He asked if M.
Vol anti served with Mjor Herb Bedrow in the Anchorage Ar
Guard.

MR. VOLANTI answered yes and noted a letter addressed to him
fromhis wife follow ng his passing.

CHAI R DYSON noted that Major Herb Bedrow perished [in a C 123
that went down] near Cape Romanzof [on the Bering Sea Coast in
1965. ]

MR. VOLANTI answered yes.
10: 14: 26 AM

CHAI R DYSON announced that HIR 23 will be set aside for a few
mnutes until the commttee has a quorum

HIR 19- BASE F-35 Al RCRAFT AT EI ELSON OR JBER

10: 14: 37 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that HIR 19 is before the commttee.

10: 14: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOUG | SAACSON, Al aska State Legislature, Juneau,
Al aska, said he appreciated having the opportunity to bring HIR
19 before the commttee. He said HIR 19 is very simlar to one
that the Senate had al ready passed out w th unani nous support.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- February 20, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON set forth that HIR 19 is a very
important bill to Alaska's econonmy and security. He noted that
HIR 19 is identical to SJR 14 and had mninmal anendnents that
did not change the purpose of the resolution. He noted that page

3, line 13, "and all bases in Alaska" was added. He called
attention to page 3, line 14, "on all bases in Al aska" was
added. He pointed out the inclusion on page 3, line 21; that

copies are to be sent to Lieutenant CGeneral Russell J. Handy. He
reiterated the Senate unaninously passed SJR 14, but noted the
addition of two itens that addresses the closure of Flint Hills
Refinery and support from the Geater Fairbanks Chanber of
Commerce. He explained that the Flint Hlls Refinery closure
will not affect the mlitary jet fuel supply. He detailed that
Petro Star has the contract for mlitary jet fuels. He noted
that encouragenent has been given to Petro Star to have a
railroad spur that can go to JBER to supply jet fuels and
mtigate sone of the negative results fromFlint HIIs'" closure.

CHAIR DYSON comented that Representative Isaacson has a
significant group of supporters.

10: 17: 09 AM

LUKE HOPKINS, Mayor, Fairbanks North Star Borough, Fairbanks,
Al aska, remarked that he is on the record from previous
testinmony in support of HIR 19.

10: 17: 34 AM
CHAIR DYSON stated that the Chair will entertain a notion on HIR
19.

10: 18: 05 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report commttee substitute (CS) for
HIR 19, |labeled 28-LS1051\C from committee wth individual
recomrendati ons and attached zero fiscal note.

10: 18: 20 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that w thout objection, CSHIR 19(MV)
passes out of conmttee.

10: 18: 29 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the commttee will stand at ease.

10: 18: 37 AM
CHAI R DYSON called the comm ttee back to order.

HIR 23- GOOD FRI DAY EARTHQUAKE REMEMBRANCE DAY

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- February 20, 2014



10: 19: 01 AM
CHAIR DYSON returned attention to HIR 23 and announced that the
Chair will entertain a notion on HIR 23.

10: 19: 01 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report HIR 23, |abeled 28-LS1038\C from
commttee with individual recommendations and attached zero
not e.

10: 19: 13 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that without objection, HIR 23 passes out
of the Senate State Affairs Standing Commttee.

10:19: 26 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Conmittee at 10:19 a.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 20, 2014



